
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) 
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020) came into force on Saturday 4 
April 2020 to enable councils to hold remote committee meetings during 
the Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities can 
conduct business during this current public health emergency. 
 
This meeting of Council will be held remotely under these regulations, 
via the Zoom application and will be webcast to ensure accessibility by 
the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 

10 July 2020 
 

Dear Councillor 
 
You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Monday 20 July 2020 at 7.30 pm. 
 

Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 May 2020 
(previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

Public Document Pack



6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 

The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC (Pages 
9 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive detailing the Council’s response to Covid-19. 
 

9.   MATTERS ARISING FROM COMMITTEE  
 

(a)    Overview and Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chairman Appointment (Pages 21 
- 22) 
 

(b)    Review of the Standard Conditions for the Licensing of Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles (Pages 23 - 42) 
 

(c) ADDENDUM (Pages 43 - 60) 
 

10.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 (Pages 61 - 62) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

11.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


 

Part I 
Item No: 4 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 20 JULY 2020 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 14 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY THE PUBLIC  
 
Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 14:- 
 
1. Question from Richard Bunday, Welwyn & Hatfield Taxi Drivers Association 
 

The Council has continued to pursue the standardisation of livery of Hackney 
Carriages and now the standardisation of vehicle type without proper consultation 
with the drivers. 
 
We appreciate that there is a need for more WCAVs within the borough but 
believe it is neither necessary nor advantageous to anyone to insist that all 
vehicles accommodate wheelchairs.  Many wheelchair-bound customers prefer to 
transfer into the more secure seat of the taxi and find it both uncomfortable and 
frightening travelling strapped into their chair, especially when facing backwards. 
 
The disability spectrum is vast and not all disabled customers are in wheelchairs, 
this is just a small proportion.  By limiting the scope of the vehicles provided within 
the fleet, you potentially create problems for customers with other disabilities and 
alienate other customers who require alternatives such as an executive car or 6, 7 
or 8-seater. 
 
The Council has not made available to us its survey regarding the public’s almost 
unanimous agreement that all taxis should be WCAVs and we dispute it’s findings 
which are the exact opposite to the survey carried out by our drivers, which is 
available to the Council on request.  We acknowledge that it’s possible that 98% of 
the public would think that WCAVs are a good idea and should be provided, but 
not that that the whole fleet should be wheelchair accessible.   
 
If the Council continue on this route, many Hackney carriage and private 
hire/chauffeur cars will choose to be licensed by another district or change careers 
altogether.  The loss of revenue to the council already exceeds £10,000.00 and 
there will be more to follow.  The Council will end up without a taxi service at all. 
 
Some drivers’ vehicles are near the 8 year age limit or have to replace their 
vehicles owing to mechanical problems or accidental damage.  It is wholly 
unreasonable for the council to expect these drivers to find the thousands of 
pounds extra immediately or in the next few weeks or months. 
 
My question is, if the Council feels there are not enough WCAVs within the 
borough, and the need is not fulfilled by the Private Sector, why doesn’t the 
Council invest in vehicles and drivers themselves, or just insist that all new drivers 
coming into the trade provide a wheelchair-accessible vehicle, thereby, in time, 
replacing the whole fleet, rather than expect existing drivers to outlay thousands of 
pounds which, in the current economic climate, which has already put their 
livelihoods in jeopardy, is not financially viable? 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 20 JULY 2020 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 
Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Kieran Thorpe 
 

“In respect of the recent demonstrations in support of “Black Lives Matter” that 
took place in Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield, does the Leader of the Council 
agree with me that these and passionate, peaceful and responsibly distanced calls 
for equality show Welwyn Hatfield at its very best?” 
 

2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 
 
“National media highlighted the expected outcome of the reopening of pubs on the 
4th July, lots of drunken and rowdy crowds not maintaining social distancing. 
Given the entirely predictable outcome, it seems rather unfortunate that the 
council’s noise nuisance service, operation reprise, remains suspended. Residents 
in my ward, disturbed by the actions of the owners, operators and customers of 
the Hope and Anchor Public House, who are clearly breaching their licence 
conditions, found there were no agencies willing to do anything at all about their 
young children being kept awake by loud music and shouted obscenities until very 
late at night. The owners/operators of the pub, perhaps also aware there is zero 
enforcement, are continuing to make my residents lives miserable with impunity on 
a variety of dates since the 4th.  
  
Will the leader apologise to my residents for letting them down like this and commit 
to reinstating operation reprise with immediate effect?” 
 

3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Glyn Hayes 
 
"On the 16th March this year, the Communities Secretary Robert Jenrick MP told 
300 Council leaders that the Government would do “whatever is necessary” to 
support local councils like Welwyn Hatfield to help the most vulnerable in society 
and support their local economy. Does the Leader of the Council or the Executive 
Member for Finance believe Welwyn Hatfield will receive whatever assistance is 
necessary?” 
 

4. Question to the Executive Member, Housing and Community from Councillor 
Frank Marsh 

 
“Recently there has been a lot of anti-social behaviour across the Borough and in 
particular in my ward of Sherrards. 
 
Given the circumstances, why is it that the Council’s anti-social behaviour (ASB) 
unit has no-one who can respond on a Thursday evening for example or indeed 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



 

any time outside council office hours, when much of the ASB is being committed 
outside those hours, ie in the evenings and weekends.  
 
Surely a quick response ASB unit will certainly compliment and assist the Police 
who reportedly only have 4 officers on duty for the whole Borough at night.  Will 
the Council seek to remedy and address the situation by providing more funds and 
ensure the welfare of its residents, given the current circumstances.  
 
Will the executive member lobby the Police and Crime Commissioner to provide 
more officers in Welwyn Hatfield in the evenings and overnight?” 

 
 

5. Question to the Executive Member, Environment and Planning from Councillor 
Jane Quinton 
 
“Future travel plans for the county include a strong emphasis on both 
conventional and electric bikes and recent Covid recovery plans also 
emphasise the use of bicycles.   
 
However the general public won’t adopt cycling if their bikes are likely to be 
stolen. With the high rate of bicycle theft in Welwyn Hatfield and without 
secure bike facilities, cyclists are understandably reluctant to leave their bikes 
chained up in the town centres.  
 
Will the council make it a priority to provide secure and protected cycle 
parking particularly in Welwyn Garden City town centre, which will encourage 
greater use of bicycles for shopping trips and commuting?” 

 

Page 6



Part I 
Main authors: Rob Bridge and Nick Long 
Leader: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 

All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL 20 JULY 2020 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides Council with a further update on the activities undertaken 
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This remains a continuously evolving 

international situation and once again this report presents information available 
at the time of writing. Councillors will be aware of the update report provided to 

Cabinet on 16 June and this report builds on that and the information presented 
in the Chief Executive’s report to Council on 6 May 2020.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Councillors note the content of the report, the continued impacts of the 
pandemic on the council’s operations and the work undertaken to date.  

2.2 That Council thanks staff, communities, residents and businesses for their 
support in working together in this unprecedented time. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Covid-19 pandemic is an international health emergency and has seen an 
unprecedented global response. In the UK, a Level 4 Health Emergency 

remains in force and within Hertfordshire major incident response plans have 
been triggered. It remains that Councillors and officers are still reprioritising 
workloads and activities in order to respond to this emergency; and although 

some services are involved in recovery and are starting to return to some level 
of normality, the council remains vigilant to ensure we are prepared for any 

“second peak” necessitating a return to response led activities.  

3.2 As the borough’s elected representatives, Councillors have also been essential 
in ensuring the council is able to continue to deliver its critical services and to 

support multi-agency partners and the community. The council has embraced 
hosting meetings by remote means and therefore continues to operate. Key 

decisions continue to be made by Councillors and there remain in place the 
emergency decision-making provisions within the Constitution, should the need 
arise. 

3.3 The Covid-19 pandemic has impacted on all council services, and the borough’s 
communities and businesses. The sections below provide an update on the 

current situation regarding our priorities and objectives. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



3.4 Our Community 

3.4.1 Safe Communities 

Officers continue to represent the council on various Hertfordshire-wide 

Covid-19 related groups which feed back into the wider Local Resilience Forum 
structures. 

The Hertfordshire Recovery Coordinating Group, of which the Chief Executive 
is the chair, continues to meet. The Leader is a member of the Hertfordshire -
wise Community Reassurance Cell which is currently carrying out work on a 

Hertfordshire-wide community impact assessment. The results of this will 
shortly be ready for analysis. The outcome of the community impact 

assessment will assist in determining Hertfordshire-wide recovery priorities.  

Operation Shield and the formalised support it provided is ending and being 
replaced by a community support network. The Government has written to all 

shielding households, setting out the details. A letter has also been sent out 
from all councils in Hertfordshire to those individuals on the shielding list who 

have not previously responded to offers of assistance. The letter provides 
assurance that help is still available if needed, with signposting to the 
assistance available. 

The NHS volunteer responders will be directed to households still requiring 
assistance. Supermarkets have pledged to continue prioritising food deliveries 

to shielding households and the CVS will be working with foodbanks to continue 
food distribution to those in the greatest need. 

For those vulnerable households in the borough not covered under the shielding 

scheme, more than 670 food parcels were distributed by the council. Now that 
the food distribution has ended, further support will be provided by the voluntary 

sector. 

The Risk and Resilience Team have produced corporate wide and service 
specific risk assessments to ensure the Council can operate its services in a 

safe manner. The team have also produced a set of guidance notes  for both 
staff and managers to help support the risk assessments and answer concerns 

that officers may have in respect of issues such as social distancing in offices, 
separation of desks, use walkways, use of PPE etc.  New guidance has also 
been prepared for managers to use when employees return to the workplace 

after a period of remote working.  The team continue to receive queries from 
service areas about the implementation of controls. Some of the business as 

usual health and safety audits are now slowly being reinstated together with 
reviewing and updating policies. 

Through the Community Safety Partnership, we have been liaising with the 

Police to determine and agree the responsibilities for the enforcement of social 
distancing controls in town centres and high streets, as well as the reopening 

of our pubs and restaurants. Over the weekend of 4 July, officers from the 
Environmental Health team undertook monitoring visits of the pubs which had 
reopened. 

The Environmental Health team continue to investigate nuisance complaints 
including, where necessary, out of hours visits and working closely with the anti-

social behaviour team to ensure all complaints are dealt with as effectively as 
possible. We are taking account of the government guidance and health and 
safety requirements to see how we may be able to deliver a routine out of hours 

noise service.  

Page 8



Over recent weeks, the Safety Advisory Team (SAT) has received a number of 
notifications in respect of events that are scheduled for 2021 and planning 
meetings are starting to take place. 

As lockdown progressed, the teams have also seen an increase in the level of 
nuisance complaints from our residents, such as noise and bonfires, and 

officers have been available to investigate these and take appropriate action.  

The Hackney Carriage team continue to assess licence renewals and 
applications, and to respond to complaints. They are liaising with other agencies 

to ensure the safety of the vehicles, drivers and the general public, including 
keyworkers who rely upon taxis for transport. 

3.4.2 Public Health 

The Public Health and Protection team have been busy providing Covid-19 
secure advice, support and guidance to businesses prior to reopening. The 

team have visited premises across all of our high streets and town centres, not 
only to provide support to businesses, but also to ensure social distancing and 

other requirements are in place so that customers and staff are safe when 
visiting or working in our high streets. 

Online training sessions have also been developed, proving to be extremely 

successful and well received by attendees. The work around the “reopening our 
high streets” has been a great example of #OneTeam working with many teams 

pulling resources together to ensure we can provide the best support and 
advice to our businesses. This has also involved working with outside agencies 
and, together with colleagues from Better Business for All, the team developed 

a Hertfordshire-wide guidance package for businesses. 

The Food Standards Agency (FSA) has written to councils about their 

expectations of councils’ food work in the context of Covid-19 and the need to 
protect the resources allocated to food and feed law official controls. The 
council need to continue to undertake official controls prescribed in legislation, 

highlighting in particular controls that are key to EU exit, such as imported 
foods. However, the government has also approved an extension of the 

temporary deviation from normal statutory intervention frequencies set out on 
the Food Law Code of Practice, which governs councils’ activity in this area and 
the temporary measure will now run to September. An updated table of priority 

has been developed and this will include resuming physical inspections in our 
high-risk premises alongside appropriate use of initial remote assessment, as 

well as inspection of new businesses. During a food inspection, the team will 
also undertake checks in respect of Covid-19 secure implementation. 

At the time of writing this report, the Public Health and Protection team are 

working closely with colleagues across Hertfordshire to develop the local 
outbreak plan and ensure we can deliver any required track and trace 

investigations and enforcement 

3.4.3 Sport & Leisure 

Panshanger Golf Course was re-opened from the end of May and has been 

trading well since. On 9 July, the government announced that indoor gyms, 
swimming pools and sports facilities can re-open from 25 July. Officers are 

working closely with GLL to ensure that Hatfield Swim Centre and Leisure 
Centre could re-open as soon as possible in a safe manner.  

Page 9



All four parks and playing fields managed by GLL have remained open, with 
cleaning and grounds maintenance work taking place. The GLL staff have been 
spending many hours clearing about 45,000 litres of waste a week at 

Stanborough Park.  New signage, posters have been installed on site and free 
bin bags have been given to visitors to encourage them to bag the rubbish 

properly and take them home if the bins are full. Open Water Swimming at 
Stanborough will restart again from 11 July. The council’s play areas have also 
reopened. 

The virtual ‘This Girl Can’ Campaign has been running with an online timetable 
of activities for women, girls and their families to do at home. 

Planning is underway for summer Xplorer sessions in the park, taking account 
of government guidelines. 

Planning is underway for Big Summer. The calendar is live from 1 July. At the 

time of writing, Fast Traxx had been organised in Hatfield Town Centre, KGV 
and Roe Hill playing fields, plus graffiti art in both town centres. 

3.4.4 Art & Culture 

We have been helping to support younger members of our communities to 
enhance their virtual learning experience through a variety of school 

engagement work. This has included providing links to external organisations 
to enhance the virtual learning curriculum and encourage young people to 

remain interested during these challenging times. Organisations engaged 
include the Youth Council Hertfordshire, Holistic Teen Coach, Divergence 
Drama, Herts Sports Partnership and Stevenage Football Club. 

Crucial Crew has also gone virtual, with a range of online resources available 
to our younger residents. 

We are also working with schools in preparation for the anticipated reopening 
of schools in September, to see how we can promote mental health and 
wellbeing. This will include a mentoring programme, and this is being taken 

forward in partnership with Groundwork, initially for the Ridgeway Academy and 
Bishops Hatfield School. 

Campus West cinema reopened its doors on 4 July, adhering to the 
government’s new safety guidance. Humphrey’s Café has reopened, serving 
drinks and pre-packaged food, with customer routes clearly marked out. Roller 

City and Soft Play remain closed at this time. The 2020 pantomime production 
of Jack and the Beanstalk has now been postponed and rescheduled for 2021. 

Tickets purchased by customers will either be moved to next year or a full 
refund will be provided to them. 

Both Mill Green Museum and the Roman Bath House remain closed to the 

public at this time, as maintaining social distancing is a key challenge, given the 
design of our sites. The team has increased its social media presence to 

continue to engage with customers and to promote the Mill Green flour sales.  
We also participated in a social media campaign #LocalMuseumsUnite from 
April until June, involving museums around Hertfordshire by sharing stories and 

objects on a different theme each week. 

The museum service has also been successful in obtaining a small grant of 

£750 from the Hertfordshire Association for Museums. This will go towards 
purchasing filming equipment to produce virtual tours of both sites. The virtual 
tour will be added to our website to engage with visitors. 

Page 10



3.5 Our Environment 

3.5.1 Clean Streets, Waste & Recycling 

The council’s new waste contractor, Urbaser, continues to perform well, given 

the challenging circumstances. The provisional recycling tonnage for the 
wheeled blue bins and recycling centres for quarter one has been increased by 

22%, compared to the same quarter last year. 

3.5.2 Green Spaces 

Our tree officers and tree contractors have restarted all tree work. The gates to 

Northaw Great Wood have been reopened. Other woods and open spaces 
remain open, as well as allotments; with plot holders expected to observe social 

distancing rules. 

The council’s grounds maintenance contractor, Continental Landscape (CLL), 
has completed the work on the flower beds for the summer bedding. All of their 

services (including hedge cutting) have resumed. 

3.5.3 Parking 

Following the next stage of the easing of lockdown measures, parking 
enforcement in residential areas was reintroduced on 6 July to manage the 
impact of increasing traffic on our roads. All existing permits will be extended 

for three months to compensate residents for the time that enforcement was 
suspended. This will automatically be added to accounts and reminders will be 

sent when permits are due for renewal. 

3.6 Our Housing 

3.6.1 Quality Landlord 

We are continuing to provide support and advice to tenants with rent arrears.  
The number of new Universal Credit claims has now returned to near pre-Covid 

levels and overall rent income collection performance has remained strong. 

We have seen an increase in neighbour disputes and anti-social behaviour. 
Council teams are working together and with the police to address incidents. 

Currently evictions are banned by the government until August 2020. However, 
behind the scenes, the teams are preparing the way for legal actions to resume 

where there is serious anti-social behaviour and where tenants with rent arrears 
are failing to engage with our staff. 

3.6.2 Housing Need 

Hotel accommodation continues to be provided to homeless households and 

the government has recently announced additional funding for local authorities 
to maintain housing provision for this group. We are awaiting more information 

from government on how the funding will be allocated. The team is working 
closely with these households and with the night shelter residents currently 
being accommodated in the Jim McDonald Centre, to help find long-term 

solutions for their housing and other issues, so that they can get their lives back 
on track. 

Our lettings service has resumed allocating homes across the board, except for 
households which are currently unable to move due to coronavirus 
infection/self-isolation. 

  

Page 11



3.6.3 Affordable Homes 

We continue to make progress with our housing development activity, although 
there have been some delays on construction sites due to Covid-19. We 

continue to purchase homes through the open market purchase schemes. 

3.6.4 Housing Quality 

The responsive repairs service has increased its capacity and will be 

addressing the backlog of non-emergency repairs that built up during the time 
that repairs were limited to urgent jobs.  

We are also addressing the backlog of gas servicing visits which built up where 

tenants were refusing access due to the pandemic. As part of our #OneTeam 
approach, officers from a number of services came together to help deal with 

booking appointments and making arrangements for the gas servicing visits to 
take place. The team has been engaging proactively with residents through a 
dedicated phone service, aimed at providing reassurance and encouraging 

tenants to allow access. This has been successful, and the number of overdue 
appointments is falling significantly. Programmed installation of new gas 

heating systems remains on hold, unless to replace a faulty system.  

3.7 Our Economy 

3.7.1 Sustainable Growth 

The Inspector cancelled the Local Plan hearing sessions scheduled for May 
2020, but policy officers are still gathering evidence and submitting statements. 

The inspector has asked for new dates to be scheduled for July and August 
2020. These are intended to debate village sites in the submitted plan and any 
other village sites that might be selected for submission, based on officer advice 

and responses to the current consultation document. Full Council will wish to 
note that the deadline for public consultation was extended to 1 May, in light of 

the lockdown situation. 

The Head of Planning is working with Herts LEP to prepare an Industrial and 
Recovery Strategy for the county and will then use that document to help 

prepare an Economic Recovery Strategy and a Town Centre Recover Strategy 
for the borough. 

A new "Pavement Licence" regime which is to be administered by local 
authorities is included in the Business and Planning Bill which should receive 
Royal Assent shortly.  This makes temporary changes to planning procedures 

and alcohol licensing and is designed to make it easier for premises serving 
food and drink (such as bars restaurants and clubs) to seat and serve 

customers outside. 

There are changes to the alcohol licensing regime, which will allow operators 
with existing alcohol on-sales licences to also serve alcohol for consumption off 

the premises and to make deliveries. 

We have continued to determine planning applications and undertake 

enforcement of serious cases. We have maintained our role as statutory 
consultees, including for those applications that require complex noise, air 
quality or contaminated land assessments. 

3.7.2 Investment & Regeneration 

Planning officers have re-started site visits from public vantage points and 

making a judgement whether it is possible to safely access back gardens via 

Page 12



side paths and gates. They are continuing to determine applications, using 
photographs where possible, however being cautious where they are unable to 
make a full and proper judgement. In such cases, officers will seek an extension 

of time with the applicant/agent. Anything that has been called-in for 
Development Management Committee will be dealt with via virtual meetings, in 

accordance with the new regulations. 

3.7.3 Neighbourhood and Town Centres 

In addition to the ongoing partnership work with the police to address anti -social 

behaviour as set out above, we are working closely with local businesses to 
provide support and encourage visitors to our town centres in a safe 

environment. 

3.7.4 Business Friendly 

The Licensing team are aware of the current difficulties faced by many 

businesses and, as such, are taking a pragmatic and flexible approach, while 
ensuring the licensing objectives are safeguarded. In the event that premises 

are found to be breaching licensing conditions, arrangements will be put in 
place to hold hearings of the licensing committee using remote access 
technology. 

The Business and Planning Bill is currently moving through the necessary 
stages in parliament and, if agreed, it will allow a licence holder to place 

removable furniture on certain highways adjacent to the premises for which the 
application was made. This is a streamlined process to allow businesses to 
secure these licences in time for the summer and, where they are deemed to 

have been granted, allow these licences to remain in place for a year, but not 
beyond 30 September 2021. 

We have worked closely with the Welwyn Garden City BID to ensure they have 
ongoing support from the council during this time. 

In Hatfield Town Centre we have held Virtual Business Drop-in sessions and 

assisted in the planning for the successful re-opening of Hatfield Town Centre 
Market. 

Across the borough, we have provided businesses with access to printed 
materials to promote health and safety, including floor marking, signs and 
posters. 

The Economic Development team continue to work with businesses to help 
them wherever possible and are running a variety of virtual training events. 

Since funding was received from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG) on 1 April 2020 for Business Grants to small 
businesses, retail, hospitality and the leisure sector, the business rates team 

has been working hard to identify the eligible businesses from our system. 

As of 6 July, we have issued £14.9m in grants to 1,101 businesses: equivalent 

to 96% of our funding allocation. 

The council has also launched the Discretionary Business Grant scheme, 
targeting small and micro businesses that were not eligible for the small 

business grant scheme. The application is open until 10 July. 

  

Page 13



3.8 Our Council 

3.8.1 Virtual committee meetings are now being held as required and the council has 
very successfully arranged other virtual events for Councillors and officers, 

including all-staff briefings and councillors’ training and development events. 
Councillors and officers are becoming more familiar with the process. The new 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) rules have been agreed by the 
Constitution Review Group and preparatory actions are taking place to facilitate 
the first meeting of the OSC in July. With the constitutional changes now agreed 

by last Council, we are seeing the start of a more streamlined governance 
process, through the use of Executive Member decision notices. 

3.8.2 Equality & Fairness 

Vulnerable residents have been identified, with targeted support, provided 
through the wider community response.  This will continue through the county-

wide community reassurance scheme. 

In recognition of the reported vulnerability of people from BAME communities 

to Covid-19, the council is ensuring that staff from this group feel especially safe 
and this has been taken into account in the council’s approach to preparing the 
workplace for officers who need to work in the office. 

Going forward, the council’s Equalities Steering Group will consider the 
potential impacts on staff and other members of its community. 

3.8.3 Customer First 

As part of the development of the Welwyn Hatfield Healthy Hub, regular 
bulletins have been produced and these are being circulated out to various 

organisations, residents and all Councillors.  

At the time of writing this report, officers are working on plans to open the 

reception in a safe manner. Protective screens, floor markings and signage are 
being installed. There will also be an upgrade to the booking system to enable 
customers to make an appointment prior to coming into the reception. 

3.8.4 Employer of Choice 

Ongoing work continues corporately as we review services returning to their full 

capacity. There will be a mixture of working arrangements to co-ordinate as this 
unfolds. We continue with remote recruitment and a number of vacancies have 
been successfully filled in this way. 

Two sessions, in respect of the mental health aspects of remote working, were 
delivered for our staff and an additional one is planned for mid-July. 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The council is a Category 1 responder for the purposes of the Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004, meaning the council has a duty to work with partners 

to plan for and recover from emergencies, and also to keep critical services 
going. 

4.2 The Coronavirus Act 2020 (the Act) was made on 25 March 2020 to make 
statutory provision in respect of Coronavirus and connected purposes. The Act 
confers a range of new powers to enable public authorities and other 

organisations to respond to issues associated with the pandemic.  

Page 14



4.3 The council continues to find ways to ensure it can continue to meet its legal 
obligations and duties, balanced against the requirement to work in different 
ways during the pandemic emergency period. The law in connection with the 

pandemic is continuously changing, so we are making sure that steps are taken 
to keep up to date. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The council has previously estimated that the financial pressure that the counci l 
is facing due to Covid-19 is around £7m. The funding received to date from the 

Government is around £1.28m. 

5.2 On 2 July, the government announced further support to the local government 

sector, which is made up of 3 elements: 

 New £500 million of funding to cover local authority spending pressures. 

 A co-payment mechanism for irrecoverable Sales, Fees and Charges 

income. Under this scheme, councils bear the first 5% of losses compared 
to their budgeted income, but the Government will support those worst 

affected by covering 75p in every pound of losses beyond this. 

 Phased repayment of Collection Fund deficits over the next 3 years. 

5.3 On 4 July, the government announced a £1.57bn funding package to the arts 
venue sector; it is unclear at this stage whether local authority run cinema and 
museums will benefit from the funding. 

5.4 At present, it is unknown how much additional funding the council will receive 
as there are very little details available. As the quarter 1 budget monitoring 

report will be presented to August Cabinet meeting, officers will be providing a 
report to update of the financial impact of Covid-19 to the Council. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 A strategic risk is now in place covering the impacts of Covid-19. This is 
assessed as highly likely to have major impacts; including finance and local 

economy, community wellbeing and effects on services, staff and corporate 
projects, and hence the achievement of some corporate objectives. Managers 
are also addressing Covid-19 impacts within their operational risk registers. 

Moving forward, there are opportunities to integrate some of the changes to 
working methods into the wider modernisation and transformation agenda 

which the council has in place. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct implications; however, guidance has been published to local 

authorities highlighting the risk of fraud in connection with recovery from the 
pandemic. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1  The council has been acting in accordance with government guidance to work 
with and support its contractors during this current pandemic. 

Page 15



9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The social distancing requirements of the response to the pandemic have 
resulted in the majority of our staff still working remotely and the amount of face 

to face contact with our customers has reduced in line with these requirements.  
This has therefore resulted in fewer vehicles being used for work-related tasks 

and a subsequent drop in work-related vehicle emissions. 

9.2 Whilst it could be argued that the reduction in staff attending the offices has led 
to a reduction in energy use at the offices, we must also bear in mind the 

potential increase in usage in homes. 

9.3 Work is underway to record carbon savings arising from the pandemic response 

in order to feed in to and influence our Climate Change Strategy. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The majority of employees have been able to continue working as normal 

throughout the emergency. There have been some impacts due to some 
employees being required to home school their children, but this has been 

mitigated by working with this group to agree more flexible arrangements.  
Where some services have scaled back, we have tried to redeploy staff to other 
critical services. There have been very low reported employee absences 

associated with Covid-19. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Home working may have positive benefits, but we are also aware of the 
negative issues that can result from remote working, such as being away from 
colleagues, adopting a different routine and the feeling of isolation.  

11.2 The challenge for many of the teams has been one of communication and 
ensuring that all staff members are able to communicate regularly in meaningful 

ways. However, the introduction of Microsoft Teams across the council has 
greatly improved our ability to communicate remotely. 

11.3 For many of the service areas, critical frontline services are still being delivered 

to our communities. For others, new responsibilities have been introduced as 
part of the National Coronavirus Plan. It is essential that we continue to fulfil our 

duty of care in respect of our employees, contractors and members of the public 
and, as such, new risk assessments, new control measures and new systems 
of work have been implemented. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The Corporate Communications team continue to co-ordinate all Covid-19 

communication activity across the council. Links to the multi-agency 
communications cell as part of the LRF structure ensure we are able to provide 
consistent, co-ordinated and timely communications to staff, Councillors, local 

residents and businesses.  

  

Page 16



13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to all the Council’s priorities. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 As set out in the report, critical services and provision for vulnerable people are 
in operation and information on how to access help is widely available, in a 

range of media, at borough, county and national level. 

14.2 On the basis that the changes to other ‘business as usual’ operations are 
currently temporary and in response to a national public health emergency, 

Equality Impact Assessments have not been completed for each of these 
changes made. Where future government regulations require changes to be 

more long term, this approach will be re-considered.  

 
 

Rob Bridge, Chief Executive 
 

Nick Long, Corporate Director, Public Protection, Planning and Governance  
 

Ka Ng, Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
 

Simone Chinman Russell, Corporate Director, Housing and Communities 
 

July 2020  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 20 JULY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Constitution Review Group meeting on 27 May 2020:- 
 
 

38. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY VICE CHAIRMAN APPOINTMENT 
 
The vice chairmanship of the new Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) was 

discussed. 

Councillor L.Chesterman (Labour) and Councillor J.Caliskan (Liberal) were put 

forward to the positions of vice chairman by the respective Group Leaders.   

Members agreed that having two positions of vice chairman from the Opposition was 

good for scrutiny and prudent in the current circumstances of holding virtual 

meetings. 

AGREED:  

That the Constitution Review Group agree Councillor L.Chesterman and 

Councillor J.Caliskan be put forward for the two positions of vice chairman of 

the new Overview and Scrutiny Committee and recommend to Full Council for 

appointment.   

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 9a



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
For Decision 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 20 JULY 2020 
 
Recommendation from the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
27 January 2020:- 
 
REVIEW OF THE STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR THE LICENSING OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
 
The Committee considered the work carried out in respect of the proposed changes 
to the conditions applicable to the licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles as well as the 
revised set of conditions for the licensing of hackney carriage vehicles. 

Importantly the proposed changes included the condition that all new vehicles (after 
8 years) would be silver Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles (WAVs).  The Council was 
the only district in Hertfordshire and one of seven in the whole Country without 
WAVs, a situation which opened up the Council to legal challenge.  

It was noted that:  

 The designated list would be drawn up by the Council and all new Wheelchair 
Accessible Vehicles (WAVS) would be added to the list and over time the 
whole fleet would consist of WAVS. 

 The specified silver colour of the vehicles and livery would apply to new 
vehicles only (WAVs) and not the existing fleet.  The first crest would be free 
to drivers and then there would be a nominal charge for replacements.  

 The conditions stated that “The Hackney Carriage vehicle must be capable of 
carrying not less than four passengers plus a person confined to a wheelchair 
(“four plus one passengers”).  Officers agreed to make it clearer as it was a 
requirement that the new WAVs could carry up to four passengers as well as 
a person using a wheelchair.  

 Members were keen that there would be room on the taxi ranks for the WAVs 
and that they were affordable to drivers.  Officers confirmed that the size of 
the new vehicles would be no greater than a standard saloon and they could 
be purchased for £12,000 plus VAT (which was in contrast to some vehicles 
on the current fleet costing £40,000).  

 Members were keen to check a thorough consultation had taken place. 
Officers confirmed that there were over 1000 consultees and they had just 
over 500 responses back (nearly 100 from the trade and 400 from the public, 
of which the majority of the trade were against the new conditions and the 
majority of the public were for the conditions).    

There was a discussion about cross border drivers and Members wanted to know if 
the Council could impose restrictions and asked Officers to speak to other 
authorities. Officers said that they appreciated the frustration of the trade. Cross 
border drivers were in line with the Deregulation Act 2015 and had made it harder for 
the trade to earn a living. In addition they often did not undergo the stringent process 
of obtaining a licence that was required in Welwyn Hatfield which put public safety at 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9b



 
 
 

 
 

risk. The recent guidance from the Department of Transport had also highlighted the 
issues with deregulation.  In essence, however, there was nothing that the Officers 
could do to prevent cross border drivers.   

Members suggested that the Secretary of State for Transport could be written to. 
The Executive Member (Public Health, Governance and Climate Change) expressed 
her appreciation of the trades’ frustration and the Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee was in agreement that the Secretary of State for Transport be 
written to.     

Members highlighted that the new conditions would likely improve the business of 
the drivers, as Hertfordshire County Council required WAVs and the livery would 
make local taxis easily identifiable for local people who would also feel safer.  

The Committee RECOMMENDS to the Council:-  
 
(1) That the revised Standard Conditions for the Licensing of Hackney Carriage 

Vehicles be adopted. 

(2) That the proposed implementation date for the revised Standard Conditions for 
the Licensing of Hackney Carriage of 1 April 2020 be adopted.  

 

 

Update to the Committee record - The initial recommendation from Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee was due to be recommended to the Full Council 
meeting in March 2020. However, owing the Covid 19 pandemic this meeting did not 
take place and therefore these recommendations were not actioned.  

The revised recommendations are therefore: 

(1) That the revised Standard Conditions for the Licensing of Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles be adopted. 

(2) That the proposed implementation date for the revised Standard Conditions for 
the Licensing of Hackney Carriage be agreed by Council.  

 
 

 

Page 22



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: James Vaughan  
Executive Member: Fiona Thomson  
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 27JANUARY 2020 
RPEORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

REVIEW OF STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR THE LICENSING OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE VEHICLES  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides an update on the work carried out in respect of the proposed 
changes to the conditions applicable to our licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles.  

1.2 A revised set of conditions for the licensing of hackney carriage vehicles have 
been developed and can be found in Appendix 1. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Committee: 

a) Consider the revised Standard Conditions for the Licensing of Hackney    
Carriage Vehicles (Appendix 1) and recommend them to Full Council for 
adoption. 

b) Consider the proposed implementation date of 1st April 2020 and 
recommend this date to Full Council for adoption.    

3 Explanation 

3.1 In 2018, the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee gave approval for 
the Hackney Carriage Team to carry out a consultation process to consider 
imposing certain licence requirements in order to bring about the introduction of 
Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles (WAVs) to the fleet of our licensed Hackney 
Carriages.  

3.2 To assist with this process a sub group consisting of elected members, 
representative from the tenant’s panel and Council officers was set up. The first 
meeting took place on 16th October 2018. 

3.3 Consultation - The following action has also been carried out in respect of this 
consultation:  

 An initial survey regarding the introduction of wheelchair accessible    
vehicles took place between June and August 2018. This was extended 
to December 2018 to include the general public.   

 The results of the initial survey and sub group meetings (16th October 
2018, 8th November 2018, 13th December 2018 and 10 January 2019) 
were reported back to Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
in January 2019. The proposed revision of the Hackney Carriage 
Conditions were also introduced and approval was given that the 

Page 23



- 2 - 

proposed Hackney Carriage Licensing Conditions be put forward for a 
formal public consultation.   

 The consultation took place between January 2019 and the end of    
March 2019. 

   As part of the consultation process, two public meetings were held at    
Campus West in March 2019. All key stakeholders, consultees and the 
general public were invited to attend these meetings.   

 All the data and comments received as a result of the consultation 
process have been collated and reported back to the sub group 
committee. 

 The consultation process ended on 25th March 2019.  Since then there 
have been two further meetings of the Sub Group committee on 4th July 
2019 and 2nd October 2019 and all outstanding queries in relation to the 
feedback from the consultation have been addressed. 

3.2 The sub group have agreed the revised set of Standard Conditions for the 
Licensing of Hackney Carriage Vehicles and have recommended the 
implementation date of 1st January 2020 for the revised set of conditions. 

3.7 It was agreed at the last sub group meeting, on 2nd October 2019, that all drivers 
would be sent the revised Licence Conditions along with a covering letter and 
notice of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee (EOSC) to be held 
on 19 November 2019, where there would be an opportunity for drivers to ask 
further questions.  

Implications 

4.0 Legal Implications 

4.1 The Council has a public sector equality duty, under section 149 of the Equality 
Act 2010, to promote and advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
are in the ‘protected categories’ (as defined within the Act) and persons who do 
not fall within the ‘protected categories’.  

4.2 Under section 37 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 the Council has power to 
licence hackney coaches or carriages to ply for hire within the prescribed 
distance. 

4.3 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 Section 47 provides 
that “a district Council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage 
under the Act of 1847 such conditions as the district Council may consider 
reasonably necessary”. 

4.4 Section 167 Equality Act 2010 gives a local authority power to maintain a list of 
designated Wheelchair Access Vehicles (“WAVs”).  

4.5 Section 165 Equality Act 2010, imposes certain, specified, duties on a driver of a 
designated taxi - with regard to WAVs - unless such a driver obtains an 
exemption certificate (on specified grounds) pursuant to section 166 of the 
Equality Act.  The driver must carry the passenger while in the wheelchair and 
must not make any additional charge for doing so.  If the passenger chooses to 

Page 24



- 3 - 

sit in a passenger seat, the driver must carry the wheelchair.  In addition, the 
driver must take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is 
carried in safety and reasonable comfort and the driver must give the passenger 
such mobility assistance as is reasonably required.  It will be an offence for a 
driver (unless exempt) of a taxi, which is included on the designated list, to fail to 
comply with these duties. 

4.6 The proposed revisions to the Hackney Carriages Licence Conditions will enable 
the Hackney Carriage Office to create and maintain a list of ‘designated vehicles’.  
Once such a list is in place, the duties which are set out in paragraph 4.5, above, 
will be triggered, subject to any successful appeal(s) by driver(s) against the 
decision to include their vehicle(s) on the ‘designated list’. 

4.7 With regard to consultation, it must: 

 be clear and concise 

 have purpose 

 be informative 

 last for a proportionate amount of time 

 be targeted 

Details of the consultation process which has been undertaken are set out within 
the body of this report. 
 

4.9 If made the decision to implement the revised conditions and the implementation 
of the revised conditions will carry a risk of legal action:  under section 47 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, any person aggrieved 
by any conditions attached to a licence, may appeal to the magistrate’s court.   

5.0 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There may be potential costs should any person launch a legal challenge against 
the decision. 

5.2 There is a cost to the licensed drivers in the purchase of Wheelchair accessible 
vehicles. 

 
6.0 Risk Management Implications 

6.1  The risks related to this proposal are any legal challenge which may arise in 
relation to the validity of the proposed conditions or validity of the decision 
making process. 

6.2 Failure to meet the Council’s public sector equality duty under the Equality Act 
could, in addition to exposing the Council to risk of legal challenge, expose the 
Council to risk of reputational harm. This would also be the case in the event of 
challenge(s) being brought by a person under the Equality Act. 

7.0 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 None directly linked to this report 

8.0 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 None directly linked to this report 

Page 25



- 4 - 

 

9.0  Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1  The proposed draft conditions will result in a cleaner taxi fleet in the long term. 

10.0 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 None directly linked to this report. 

11.0 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

 11.1 The safety of public users and vehicle drivers is of paramount importance when 
considering licence applications. 

12.0 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Communication and engagement with all the relevant stakeholders is a 
fundamental aspect of this process. The sub group is satisfied that this has been 
adequately carried out.  

13.0 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
(Maintain a safe and healthy community), and specifically to the 
achievement of improve and maintain the health and wellbeing of residents  

14.0 Equality and Diversity 

14.1    An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been carried out in connection with   
the Introduction of Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles. It has identified that there is 
the potential for positive impacts on those who have a disability as some of those 
within this protected characteristic may be wheelchair users.  A copy of the 
completed EIA report is included as Appendix 2 to this report. 

 
 
 
Name of author James Vaughan, 01707 357982 
Title Hackney Carriage Officer 
Date December 2019 
 
 
Background papers to be listed  

Appendix 1     Revised Hackney Carriage Licence Conditions 

Appendix 2   Equality Impact Assessment 

Page 26



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR THE LICENSING OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
VEHICLES,  2020 

Pursuant to section 47 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
these standard conditions apply to all hackney carriage vehicles licensed by Welwyn 
Hatfield Borough Council (“the Council”) under section 37 of the Town and Police 
Clauses Act 1847 

Any vehicle licensed by the Council pursuant to section 37 of the Town and Police 

Clauses Act 1847 (“Hackney Carriage”) must comply with the following conditions. 

1 General 

1.1 The   Hackney Carriage vehicle, must, at all times, be: 

(a) safe 

(b) tidy 

(c) clean; and 

(d) comply with all relevant statutory provisions, requirements and 
subordinate legislation at all times. 

1.2 The proprietor and driver of a Hackney Carriage vehicle shall ensure that the 
vehicle is maintained to a high standard of appearance and cleanliness, both 
on the exterior and interior.  They must also ensure that it is mechanically 
safe, reliable and that all ancillary equipment is carried in a serviceable 
condition.  

1.3 The proprietor and driver of a Hackney Carriage vehicle must ensure that any 
driver is fully trained and conversant in regard to all safety features including 
the loading and unloading of passengers confined to a wheelchair.  This 
training must be completed by a Council approved trainer. The training must 
be completed by a trainer who is approved by the Council (A list of Council-
approved trainers will be provided by the Council) 

 

2 Specification 

2.1 The Hackney Carriage vehicle shall be a purpose built vehicle in line with 
European Community Whole Vehicle Type Approval (“ECWVTA”) – M1 type 
approval.  It must be capable of carrying, loading and alighting a person 
confined in a wheelchair in safety. This specification will also apply to any 
transfer of a vehicle licence including accidental damage. 

2.2 The Hackney Carriage vehicle must have a side loading or rear loading door 
that enables the wheelchair user to be safely loaded into and out of the 
vehicle. 

2.3 The Hackney Carriage vehicle shall be fitted with the appropriate access 
equipment (including but not exclusively ramps and steps) for the Hackney 

Page 27



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

Carriage vehicle make and model and must be kept with the Hackney 
Carriage vehicle at all times. 

2.4 Where the internal floor height of the Hackney Carriage vehicle exceeds 
12inches (305mm) Intermediate steps shall be fitted every 9 inches (228mm) 
from road level up to the internal floor height.  All steps must be capable of 
carrying the weight of an adult and be permanently affixed to the vehicle.  All 
steps must be illuminated. 

2.5 The Hackney Carriage vehicle shall be of all one standard silver colour and 
display WHBC Crests on the front driver and front passenger doors. (Crests 
will be issued initially free of charge, there will be a charge for any 
replacement crests). 

2.6 The silver colour, referred to in paragraph 2.5 (above), shall be permanent or 
permanently affixed. 

2.7 The Hackney Carriage vehicle must be capable of carrying not less than four 
passengers plus a person confined to a wheelchair (“four plus one 
passengers”).   

2.8 Where the Hackney Carriage vehicle is not carrying a person confined to a 
wheelchair the maximum number of passengers at any one time shall be 
eight. 

2.9 Where the Hackney Carriage vehicle is carrying a person confined to a 
wheelchair the maximum number referred to in paragraph 2.8 (above) shall be 
reduced according to the number of seats occupied by the wheelchair. 

2.10 The vehicle shall be of right-hand drive manufacture and not converted as so.  

2.11 All vehicles must have adequate leg and foot-room, shoulder-width and head-
height for all passengers. 

2.12 The vehicle shall comply with Euro 6 emission standards. 

2.13 The vehicle glass is to be kept clear of all obstructions.  

 

3 Vehicle Licence Plates 

3.1 The vehicle licence plates, including an internal plate, are to be affixed to the 

vehicle, with the bracket supplied by the Hackney Carriage Office in a position 

determined by the Authorised Officer.  

3.2 The licence plates shall display the number of passengers that the vehicle 

may carry the vehicle registration number and date of expiry of the Licence.  

3.3 No plate may be removed from any vehicle, under any circumstances, without 

the prior permission of the Hackney Carriage Office. 

Page 28



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

3.4 Only an Authorised Officer or any Constable may remove a licence plate from 

a Hackney Carriage in circumstances where the vehicle licence is suspended, 

or revoked or withdrawn. 

3.5 The plate remains the property of the council at all times. It must be returned 

to the Council on written request within seven days of being given notice to do 

so. 

 

4 Tyres and Spare Wheel 

4.1 Tyres must all be of either radial or cross-ply manufacture, including the spare 

wheel. 

4.2  Where the manufacturer supplies a ‘space saver’ type spare wheel, all 

guidance to its use must be adhered to.  In circumstances where the ‘space 

saver’ spare wheel is fitted, the ‘normal’ tyre must be repaired and refitted as 

soon as is practical, but in any event before the vehicle is’ hired’ again. 

4.3 All tyres are to be in a state of good repair and comply at all times with the 

construction and use regulations in force. 

4.4 If a spare wheel is not carried, as may be the case with a Liquid Petroleum 

Gas (“LPG”) converted vehicle and with the permission of the Authorised 

Officer, the vehicle must be fitted with ‘Run flat’ tyres. 

 

5 Age of vehicles 

5.1 No Vehicle shall be licensed if it is over four years old from first date of 

registration. 

5.2 All vehicles are to be licensed for a period of 1 year.  If in that year they attain 

the age of ten years from first date of registration, they will only be licensed to 

the date on which the age of 10 years is reached 

5.3 The Licence fee will be charged pro-rata to the nearest full months if a vehicle 
is to be licensed less than a year. 

 

6 General Condition of the vehicle 

6.1 The interior of the vehicle must remain clean and tidy at all times. 

6.2 The exterior of the vehicle must remain clean and free of any ‘impact’ or other   

damage at all times. 

Page 29



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

6.3 The luggage compartment must be maintained in a clean and tidy condition 

with no extraneous items, only essential tools as supplied by the manufacturer 

may be carried.   

6.4 Where a vehicle is utilised for the carriage of passengers in a wheelchair 

access to and exit from the wheelchair position must not be obstructed in any 

manner at any time except by wheelchair loading apparatus. 

6.4 The carriage within the luggage compartment of lubricants, washing fluids, or 
other extraneous items is forbidden whilst the vehicle is plying for hire. 

 

7 Roof and For Hire Signs 

7.1 Roof and ‘For Hire’ signs must meet the approval of the Council and be 

capable of   being illuminated in conjunction with the taximeter. They are to be 

integral to the vehicle build and not detachable. 

 

8 Inspection of Vehicles 

8.1 Vehicles aged below one year do not require a certificate of compliance until 

one year has elapsed since the first date of registration. 

8.2 Vehicles aged one year to three years from date of first registration must be 

tested annually at an authorised testing station. 

8.3 Vehicles aged three years to ten years must be tested every six months at an 

authorised testing station. 

8.4 All vehicles must  have a Certificate of Compliance test issued by an 

authorised testing station within 28 days prior to the date of renewing, 

granting or transferring of a vehicle Licence. 

8.5 All fees for vehicles inspections are to be paid direct to the authorised garage 

at the time of inspection or re-inspection. 

8.6 Fees may be charged for re-inspections at the discretion of the authorised 

testing station. 

 

9 Taximeters 

9.1 Taximeters are to be of a type or model and positioned to the approval of the 

Hackney Carriage Office. 

Page 30



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

9.2 All taximeters are to be calibrated up to the Council’s maximum tariff and a 

certificate of calibration supplied at the time of sealing the taximeter. 

9.3 The meter must be used at all times when a journey commences and 
concludes within the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council. 

9.4 An authorised fare card is to be displayed at all times whilst a Hackney 

Carriage vehicle is plying for hire. 

9.5 The taximeter must be positioned within the vehicle so as to allow passengers 

a clear unhindered view.   

  

10 Accidents 

10.1 All accidents involving a Hackney Carriage, whether on hire or not, must be 

reported to the Hackney Carriage Office within a maximum of 72 hours from 

the time of its occurrence. This must be done in writing.  

 

11 Advertising 

11.1 No more than two external advertisements are to be displayed on a vehicle 

and must be approved by the Authorised Officer prior to display. 

11.2 Advertisements must be confined to the rear side passenger doors and must 

be approved by the Authorised Officer. 

11.3 No advertisement or other matter whatsoever may be displayed on any 

windows of the vehicle. 

 

12 Fire Extinguisher  

12.1 A fire extinguisher with a dry powder capacity of not less than 1kg must be 

provided within the vehicle at all times and must be within date. 

12.2 Any extinguisher shall conform in all respects to the British Standards 

Institute. 

 

13 Fees 

13.1 Fees, once paid are not refundable. 

13.2 Fees may be varied from time to time in accordance with statute, to meet the 

reasonable cost of all matters relating to the licensing of Hackney Carriage. 

Page 31



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

 

14 Two way Radio and Data Heads 

14.1 All two-way radios and data heads are to be fitted to the fabric of the vehicle 
in a secure manner.  They must not impinge on the safe operation of the 
vehicle. 

 14.2 No telecommunication equipment of any kind (excluding ‘hands free’) is 

to be used whilst the vehicle is being driven. 

 

15 Ramps and Stowage 

15.2    All ramps and accessibility equipment must be carried at all times in a manner 

that is safe and easily accessible for use. 

15.3   It is the driver’s responsibility to ensure all passengers are safe throughout 

their journey, including loading and unloading. All safety equipment must be 

used. 

15.4 All luggage must be safely and securely stowed. 

 

16.0 Documentation 

16.1 All vehicle proprietors at the time of applying for a grant, renewal, or transfer 

of a licence must supply the following documentation; 

(1) Vehicle registration document (VQ5) 

(2) Certificate of Compliance obtained within 28 days of the grant, transfer 

or renewal of Licence. 

(3) A valid certificate of insurance designated for ‘public hire’. Spouses or 

other unlicensed drivers must not be included on the policy.  

(4) Wheelchair accessible vehicle driver training certificate 

(5) In the case of a transfer, a letter from the current proprietor of the 
vehicle, authorising the transfer of the vehicle Licence, must be 
provided to the Authorised Officer. 

 

17.0  Certificate of Insurance   

17.1   All insurance certificates must state ‘Public Hire and Reward’. 

 

Page 32



Classification: Restricted 

 

Classification: Restricted 

 

Interpretation 

For the purpose of these conditions: 

The ‘Authorised Officer’ means an officer of the Council of the Welwyn and Hatfield 

Borough council for the time being authorised in writing by the Council for the 

purpose of Part ll of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or 

the Town Police Clauses Act 1847. 

Note:-  

The Council being in possession of a certificate of exemption granted by the 

Secretary of State for Transport is required to issue a certificate of compliance in 

respect of each licensed Hackney Carriage operating within the Borough. 

By virtue of the said certificate of exemption, the council may not accept anything 

other than a certificate of compliance as evidence of the satisfactory condition of the 

vehicle, which is to be licensed.  

The test may only be carried out at a testing station appointed by the council and 

authorised by the Department of Transport. The test must be at least to M.O.T. 

standard before the certificate can be issued. When presenting the vehicle for 

licensing, re-licensing or transferring you must ensure that the date of issue of the 

certificate of compliance is not more than 28 days prior to the date of issue of the 

Licence. 

 

March 2020 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



24.07.18 
 

 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

 
Equality Impact Assessment 

Assessment completed by: Cheryl Bridges, Regulatory Support Officer 

Name of policy/project/ 
service to be assessed 

 
 
Hackney Carriage Terms and Conditions (Licence 
Conditions) 
 
 

 
At what stage of 
consultation has this EqIA 
been prepared? 
 

 

Pre consultation      ☐ 

Post consultation  ☒ 

No consultation required ☐ 

 

Method of analysis 
undertaken and dates 

 

Managers – desktop screening ☒ Date: 04/07/2019 

Employee Forum ☐ Date: 

Stakeholder review ☐ Date:  

 

Who does the policy or 
service affect? 
 

 

Customers (public)          ☒ 

Internal (staff/Members)   ☒ 

External (partners/contractors/agencies) ☒ 

Other (Hackney Carriage Drivers)    

 ☒ 

 

What are the aims/ 
objectives/purpose or 
outcome or intended 
effects of the policy, 
project or service? 

 
The aim of the revised conditions is to promote access 
for wheelchair users and other disability groups to 
hackney carriage vehicles within the borough.  Currently 
there are is no available access to wheelchair accessible 
wheelchairs in the hackney carriage fleet in Welwyn and 
Hatfield.  The Council must be seen to not be 
discriminating against those with protected characteristics 
under the Equality Act 2010. 

What equality data is 
available relating to the 
use or implementation of 
the policy, project or 
service? 

 
As part of the consultation data was sourced from a 
number of agencies including Office for National 
Statistics, Welwyn Hatfield Council demographic profile, 
Department of Work and Pensions as well as other 
resources such Family Resources 
 

Page 35



24.07.18 
 

 
 
 

 
What consultation has 
taken place in the 
development or review of 
the policy, project or 
service? 

 
Please see timeline (index) 
 
 

Page 36



24.07.18 
 

 

Does the policy have a positive or negative impact on any of the following Protected Characteristic groups covered by the Equality Act 

2010? 

 Positive 
 

Negative 
 

Neutral 
 

Evidence & Comments 

 
Age 
 
 

 

☒ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 
Larger vehicles and accessibility equipment will provide easier access not just 
for wheelchair users 

 
Disability 
 
 

 

☒ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 
This will have a positive impact as there are currently no wheelchair vehicles 
for the community to access.  Statistics that 14.4% of the local population 
have a disability or long term health condition. 
 
Drivers are able to apply for medical exemptions under S166 of the Equality 
Act 2010 if they have a genuine medical condition which is aggravated by 
assisting people in wheelchairs, the Council needs to be satisfied in these 
circumstances.  Therefore these would be no negative impact on drivers that 
have medical conditions. 

 
Ethnicity 
 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on staff and users. 
 
Around 85% of drivers are from an ethnic background and it could be argued 
that there is a negative impact on them due to the requirement to buy a new 
vehicle.  However this requirement is relevant to all hackney carriage drivers 
regardless of their background, therefore it is believed that there will be no 
negative impact in this regard. 

 
Gender re-
assignment 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on users, drivers or staff 

P
age 37



24.07.18 
 

 
Marriage/Civil 
partnership 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on users, drivers or staff 

 
Pregnancy & 
Maternity 
 

 

☒ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

Large vehicles and accessible equipment would have positive impact not just 
on wheelchair users. 
No negative impact on a pregnant driver as medical exemption can be sought 
under S166 of the Equality Act 2010 if they have genuine medical condition 
which is aggravated by assisting people in wheelchairs, but this would only be 
short term exemption so would not impact having a wheelchair vehicle. 
There would be no impact on maternity in relation to drivers or staff. 

  

P
age 38



24.07.18 
 

 Positive 
 

Negative 
 

Neutral 
 

Evidence & Comments 

 
Religion or belief 
 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on users, drivers or staff 

 
Sex 
 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on users, drivers or staff.  

 
Sexual orientation 
 
 

 

☐ 

 

 

☐ 

 

 

☒ 

 

 
No impact on users, drivers or staff. 

 
 

Equality Impact Assessment Outcome: 

Low risk ☒   

 Medium risk ☐   

 High risk ☐   

 

Any other comments: 

 

 

 

P
age 39



24.07.18 
 

For Steering Group use only: 

Comments:  

P
age 40



          Agenda Item 9b 

          Part I - for decision 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 

COUNCIL – 20 July 2020 
 

ADDENDUM OFFICER REPORT 

 
REVIEW OF THE STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR THE LICENSING OF HACKNEY 

CARRIAGE VEHICLES 
 

Summary 
 

This Addendum report is submitted in order to bring to the attention of Council a letter from Mr 

Richard Bunday dated 7th July 2020 and an email communication received from the office of the Rt 
Hon Grant Shapps on 17th July. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 

3. In the event that Council agrees to adopt the revised standard conditions for the Licensing of 
Hackney Carriage Vehicles, that Council consider the date of 1st October 2020 for implementation of 

the revised Standard Conditions. 
 

1. Paragraph 3.3 of the main report explains the actions which were taken during the 
consultation process. 

 

2. At its meetings on 4th July 2019 and 2nd October 2019 the Taxi Terms and Conditions Sub-
Group (“the Sub Group”) gave full consideration to the representations and feedback received 

during the consultation process.  
 

 4. By a letter dated 7th July 2020, Mr Richard Bunday submitted further representations for 

consideration by Council within the context of its consideration of this report and the 
recommendations contained within it.  Part A of the Appendix to this Addendum report sets 

out the representations submitted by Mr Bunday together with, where applicable, the 
equivalent representations which were considered by the Sub Group and the Sub Group’s 

considerations of those representations.  In the event of any new representation(s), the 

responses of Officers are included for the assistance of Council.  Mr Bunday’s letter appears 
as an Annex to the Appendix to this addendum report. 

 

5. On 17th July 2020, the Head of Public Health and Public Protection received an email from the 

case-worker for the Rt Hon Grant Shapps MP.  The email informed that Grant Shapps MP 

“has been contacted by another constituent who is a taxi driver concerned about the 
proposed changes ahead of the meeting concerning this matter on the 20th July. The 
constituent is particularly concerned about the financial implications of the changes on taxi 
drivers, especially given their financial struggles in light of the ongoing pandemic. Grant 
would greatly appreciate if the Council could clarify their understanding of the financial 
impact the changes to the Hackney Carriage Terms & Conditions will have on taxi drivers and 
how the already financially precarious position of many taxi drivers due to the current 
pandemic has been taken into account for any potential impact”.  Officers’ responses to these 

points are set out in Part B of the Appendix to this report. 

6. The Council has a duty to meet the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and it is for this 
reason that the proposal to change the Standard Conditions has been brought forward.   

 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 9c



This page is intentionally left blank



               Agenda Item 9b 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 20 JULY 2020 
Recommendation from the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
27 January 2020:- 
REVIEW OF THE STANDARD CONDITIONS FOR THE LICENSING OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE VEHICLES  

Addendum Report - Appendix 

Part A – Points raised by Mr Bunday and responses of the Taxi Sub Group Committee agreed at its meetings on 12 December 

2018, 10th January 2019, 4 July 2019 and 2 October 2019. 

Points raised by Mr Bunday in his letter of 
7 July 2020 

Equivalent survey 
representation/feedback 
considered by the Taxi Terms 
and Conditions Sub Group  

Considerations of the Taxi 
Terms and Conditions (“Sub 
Group”) 

Officer Response to ‘new’ 
representation/feedback 

1. All vehicles to be WCAVs 
 
It is neither necessary nor advantageous to 
anyone to insist that all vehicles accommodate 
wheelchairs.  Many wheelchair-bound 
customers prefer to transfer into the more 
secure seat of the taxi and find it both 
uncomfortable and frightening travelling 
strapped into their chair, especially when facing 
backwards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
“Have been helping passengers 
in and out of chairs for years no 
problems.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
At the sub group meeting on 12 
December 2018, sub group 
members reviewed wheelchair 
accessible vehicles.  Two members 
are wheelchair users and both were 
strapped into both rear and side 
loading vehicles and were happy 
that they felt secure.  The 
advantages and disadvantages were 
discussed but the group came to 
agree that they were happy with the 
suitability and ease of use for the 
vehicles they viewed. 
It was also discussed at the sub 
group meeting on 4 July 2019  that 
not all wheelchairs are foldable for 
transporting for example some 

 
Officers have attended on 
two occasions wheelchair 
vehicle conventions in which 
vehicles were viewed and 
there is a wide range of 
vehicles with different seating 
options available which may 
not necessarily mean a 
passenger would be facing 
backwards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 43



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By limiting the scope of the vehicles provided 
within the fleet, you potentially create problems 
for customers with other disabilities.  Many older 
people and those suffering from conditions such 
as achondroplasia, find it hard to get into 
vehicles which are higher up. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Also, by limiting the variety of vehicles available, 
you alienate other customers who require 
alternatives such as an executive car, a saloon, 
an estate or a 6, 7 or 8-seater. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Older passengers would not be 
able to use these vehicles.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“I do executive work and will lose 
this work if there is livery on my 
vehicle.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

wheelchairs can weigh around 72 
kilos, passengers also have different 
mobility needs not all can get out of 
a chair.  
 
 
 
The concern would be over the high 
step into a WAV for non-wheelchair 
passengers.  This would be resolved 
by the use of steps which has been 
considered in conditions further 
down. – Councillors agreed that 
accessible lower steps into vehicle 
would resolve the issue.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This was discussed but would need 
to be reviewed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wheelchair vehicles will be 
purpose built, most will have 
fold out steps for this purpose 
to allow a passenger to alight 
with ease and safely.  Hand 
rails will be part of the vehicle 
and on a balanced review 
should not cause anymore 
difficulty than an elderly 
customer trying to lift 
themselves from a saloon 
style vehicle or smaller 
people carrier from a seat or 
up or down a step. 
 
 
Currently this was brought up 
by one driver.  As far as we 
are aware this would only 
affect a very small 
percentage of drivers who 
may do executive work. If a 
driver is solely doing 
executive work which would 
be mainly private hire and 
their customers did not want 
a WAV then is no reason why 
the vehicle cannot change 

P
age 44



 
 
 
 
We have not been able to find any vehicles 
which comply with all of the Council’s proposed 
criteria for under £13k plus VAT so would like to 
see your sources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Some driver’s vehicles are near the 8 year age 
limit or have to replace their vehicles owing to 
mechanical problems or accidental damage.  It 
is wholly unreasonable for the council to expect 
these drivers to find the thousands of pounds 
extra immediately or in the next few weeks or 
months.   
 
 
 
 
We also disagree that the proposed new 
vehicles are the same length as a non-WCAV.  
Again we would like to see your research.  Many 
of the WCAVs are rear-loaded which would 
mean that additional space behind each taxi on 
the rank would be needed. 
 
 

 
 
 
“Expensive to buy purpose built 
WAV – will this be funded?” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Rear and side loading issues 
been told cannot have rear 
loading.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
At present there is no funding 
available through The Hackney 
Carriage or other agencies that we 
are aware of.  The Hackney Carriage 
office has in fact looked into vehicles 
and expenses and they are quite 
affordable.  Attending Expo last 
month a (brand new) WAV which 
would be suitable for purpose is 
available for under £22,000.  
 
 
This would be for the Committee to 
decide exact details of how and 
when terms may be implemented if 
agreed to proceed. This was also 
discussed at a sub group meeting in 
October 2018 that an option would 
phased programme of introduction. 
 
 
 
 
In relation to loading it was 
discussed and the sub group were 
happy that the driver have a choice 
of rear or side loading. Also 
confirmed at a sub group meeting on 
10 January 2019 that side and rear 
loading acceptable  in the interests 
of equality.  
 

over to private hire. 
 
 
 
No change to funding since 
the meeting of the sub group 
in June 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This has been further 
discussed with the sub group 
and officers at a meeting on 
16 June 2019.  The Covid-19 
pandemic was also taken into 
account and 
recommendations for future 
dates to implement will be 
discussed.  
 
 
A question was put forward 
by a driver that 5-10% of 
drivers use the ranks so this 
would only affect these 
drivers wanting to use the 
ranks.  All advantages and 
disadvantages were 
discussed at sub group 

P
age 45



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

We would also like to have sight of the Hackney 
Carriage Office’s survey regarding the 
requirement for WCAVs.  We acknowledge that 
it’s possible that 98% of the public would think 
that WCAVs are a good idea and should be 
provided, but not that that the whole fleet should 
be wheelchair accessible.  We have undertaken 
our own survey, which is available, and not one 
person said that they believed that all taxis 
should be WCAVs. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Survey results put to sub group 
meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sub group members have had view 
of the survey results since the 
surveys closed and all following 
meetings have taken the results into 
account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

meetings and balanced with 
the needs of the public which 
came through in the original 
survey results in June-August 
2018.  At the public meeting 
one councillor who uses a 
wheelchair stated they prefer 
rear loading so as to face 
forward so this would tie in 
with comments made earlier 
about customers preferring 
rear loading.  However as 
stated also some side loading 
in fact allow passenger now 
to face forward. In relation to 
the length of the vehicle it 
depends on the make and 
model of the vehicle that they 
purchase as they are built on 
existing vehicle chassis. 
 
 
A breakdown of the survey 
results were shown at the 
public meeting in March 2019 
which was an opportunity to 
view the data collected.   This 
was based on information 
collected from all consultees. 
This is the first that officers 
have been made aware of a 
survey completed by drivers.  
We have not had sight nor 
any information who has 
been consulted and how this 

P
age 46



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
If the Council continue on this route, many 
Hackney carriage and private hire/chauffeur 
cars will choose to be licensed by another 
district.  The loss of revenue to the council 
already exceeds £10,000.00 and there will be 
more to follow.  The Council will end up without 
a taxi service at all. 
 
 
 
 
 
If the Council feels there are not enough 
WCAVs within the borough, and the need is not 
fulfilled by the Private Sector, then the Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Failure to enforce out of area 
drivers.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Council should provide funds.” 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Irrelevant to this consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It was discussed that there was no 
funding available to accommodate 
this and that we could not operate as 
a private operator. 

survey has been done.  The 
survey results showed from 
our initial survey that in fact 
the two popular answers to 
amount of fleet to be 
changed was either 90-100% 
or 0-10% so this showed both 
ends of the spectrum from 
the consultees.  Again this 
would be for discussion by 
the committee as to how 
terms are implemented.  It 
was decided that the starting 
point had to be 100% as 
there was no clear option on 
how the terms can be 
implemented fairly without 
discriminating against drivers. 
 
 
Due to licence shopping the 
area, as with others has seen 
a reduction in new drivers 
and drivers leaving to licence 
cheaper somewhere else.  
The current Deregulation Act 
2015 and case law 
supporting Uber is the main 
reason behind this. 
 
 
Hackney Carriage has seen a 
total of 4 new hackney 
carriage drivers over the last 
2 years and based on these 

P
age 47



should invest in vehicles and drivers 
themselves.  It is the Council’s obligation to 
provide this service, not the drivers.  In addition, 
you could insist that all new drivers coming into 
the trade provide a wheelchair-accessible 
vehicle, thereby, in time, replacing the whole 
fleet. 
 

 
 
 

figures it would not be viable 
to only put conditions onto 
new drivers as the public 
demand will not be met and 
in turn Council would be on 
breach of the Equality Act 
2010. 

2. Livery 
 
We are very disappointed to see this item 
proposed again.  You will recall that the 
suggestion of a uniform colour and WHBC crest 
were raised back in 2006 and 2007.  Our 
solicitors proved at the time that both these 
issues were illegal.  The council dropped the 
idea of the uniform colour but continued with the 
insistence of drivers displaying the council logo 
on their vehicles.  The case went to court and 
the Council lost on appeal, costing thousands of 
pounds.  The outcome will be the same should 
the Council wish to continue along this route. 
 
 
 
One of the reasons given for changing the 
colour of the vehicles to a uniform silver colour, 
is that customers would more easily recognise 
them as taxis.  At the moment, taxis are easily 
recognised by the roof light, for hire sign and the 
plate on the rear of the vehicle.  In thirty-five 
years of driving a taxi, I have never had, nor 
heard of, any problems with anyone not 
recognising a vehicle as a taxi.  Silver is not a 
standard universally kept throughout the county, 

 
 
Livery makes little or no 
difference as seen by the surge of 
out of area vehicle not up to a 
good standard 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“Unnecessary public have no 
problem finding a WHBC taxi.” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
There was a very strong public view 
on livery on the first survey that they 
do clearly recognise St Albans taxis 
who have a livery policy and the 
public would like to see that in 
Welwyn and Hatfield.  Out of area 
vehicles are not recognisable and 
livery would make local drivers stand 
out amongst the out of area drivers.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
This may be obvious from the ranks 
but taxis can also be hailed in the 
street, not all drivers currently have 
the Welwyn Hatfield recommended 
top light and have standard taxi light 
which would suggest a local taxi until 
the rear plate is seen. Committee 
agreed with the comments.  This 
was again brought up at the public 
meeting whereby a councillor 

 
 
Case law has since 
supported livery as a sound 
and reasonable condition.  R 
(on application of Simmons) v 
The Crown Court Guildford.  
The driver’s appeal was 
dismissed.  If a condition 
which applies or upholds a 
policy is ‘reasonably 
necessary’ any challenge 
would effectively undermine 
the policy.  
 
 
 
It has been identified by way 
of the survey results that the 
higher amount of responses 
want to see livery as a way to 
quickly and easily identify a 
local vehicle. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



so why, therefore, do you believe that this would 
make the vehicle more like a taxi?  There are 
many effective and more appropriate ways 
which could be implemented to more easily 
identify a taxi.  Changing the car to silver, or any 
colour, is not one of them. 

 
 

The purpose of the Council is to provide a 
service for the residents of the district, not to 
shut down companies and, thereby, reduce the 
service.  The actions of the Council are directly 
causing the folding of taxi companies and it 
would seem these companies are being 
specifically targeted. 

 
 
There are many government Acts that state that 
once you put a logo on a taxi you cannot put it 
on any other vehicle.  Therefore, the Welwyn 
Hatfield logo could not be used, unless you 
remove it from all other vehicles.  It is not 
permissible to make a hackney carriage look like 
any vehicle. 
 
 
Privately owned hackney carriage vehicles are 
not just used for work.  Drivers do not want to 
get flagged down when they are not working, for 
instance, when they are on holiday.  The Human 
Rights Act states that people have a right to 
privacy. 

 
 

As a side note, hackney carriages are permitted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As above 
 

confirmed that they would want to 
hail a vehicle in the street not 
necessarily go to a rank where there 
would be local vehicles. 
 
 
 
The sub group in it’s deliberations 
considered the requirements of the 
Equality Act 2010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
It is clear from the survey that 
the service is needed by the 
public and the Council has a 
duty under the Equality Act 
2010. 
 
 
 
Hackney carriage vehicles 
will have a “for hire” light in 
view on the window and also 
the integral top light of WAV. 
The driver should only have 
these switched on when 
available for hire as is the 
standard use now there is no 
change to that, therefore 
there should be no reason for 
them to be flagged down 
when not in operation.  They 
currently have a plate 
permanently fixed showing it 
is as hackney carriage. 
 
 
All advertising has to be 
authorised by the Council 
and is restricted to the rear 

P
age 49



to display advertising.  Are the council willing to 
compensate drivers for loss of advertising space 
should the proposed logos be implemented? 
 
 
 
 
 
Under the Public Passenger Vehicle Act of 
1981, a privately owned taxi is not a public 
service vehicle but is a private business owned 
by the driver.  It is not owned by the council.  
With the current proposed scheme there would 
be a rolling change-over to the new silver livery 
which might take up to eight years to implement, 
by which time there might be a new council with 
different ideas. 
 
 
 
Standardised livery doesn’t work.  St Albans has 
had a standardised livery for approximately 20 
years now and even still, non-liveried taxis are 
being flagged down.  Customers from outside 
the district are not aware that there is a standard 
livery for the area and flag down any taxi with a 
light on.  Customers do not care what colour taxi 
they get into.  The Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee stated that a standard livery 
would improve business of drivers, make local 
taxis more easily identifiable for local people 
who would also feel safer.  What evidence do 
you have of these statements?  Why would a 
customer feel safer in a silver car and not a 
black one?  Why do you think that a change of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The survey results showed that 
the public do want to see livery 
and there were a number of 
comments and suggestions put 
forward:- ‘stand out colour and 
signage’, ‘obvious stickers’, 
’recognisable colour and design’ 
and ‘visible to sight impaired 
people’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The silver colour was decided by 
members of the sub-group as being 
a reasonable standard colour at a 
meeting on 10 January 2019 and 
that livery was important of terms of 
identity of vehicles to the public.  
Black and white were also 
considered at this time as being 
standard colours but a discussion on 
advantages and disadvantages was 
undertaken and silver was decided 
on. 
 
 
 
 
 

passenger doors of the 
vehicle. The livery is to be 
placed on the front doors of 
the vehicle.  
 
 
It was not relevant for the 
consultation to take account 
of decisions that the Council 
may make take in the future.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The survey results showed 
that the public as well as 
other consultee respondents 
tended to agree with livery 
and the idea of colour, 
badges and signage were put 
forward as what they wanted 
to see on a vehicle. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 50



colour would improve business and why do you 
believe that local people need to be able to 
identify taxis more easily? 
 
 
As with all professions, there are rogue 
elements.  If all cars were the same, it would 
greatly complicate identifying disreputable 
drivers.  It would make it much harder, perhaps 
even impossible, for a lost purse or phone to be 
located, or more seriously, a dishonest or violent 
driver to be identified.  It is of utmost importance 
to the honest members of the Association to 
identify these rogue drivers and have their 
licences revoked.  If all cars looked the same, it 
would greatly complicate the identification of 
these disreputable drivers.  The only defining 
description of the perpetrators of crime would be 
the sex of the driver and their skin colour, all 
other details would be the same.  We need to 
make the detection of these drivers easier not 
harder. 

 
 
 

It is not only the safety of passengers that is 
reduced by the use of a standardised colour and 
logo but the safety of the drivers and their 
vehicles.  As I'm sure you are aware, several 
taxis have been vandalised and broken into for 
cash etc, in Welwyn Garden City and 
surrounding areas.  Many drivers feel it 
necessary to switch off their 'For Hire' lights and 
remove their roof lights when parked, so 
potential assailants won't recognise the vehicle 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
“No [the top lights] should be 
detachable when not in use to 
deter theft and vehicle break ins”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
There is no statistical evidence to 
show this is a problem. Drivers 
should not be leaving anything of 
value in their vehicles this is a 
security issue for the driver.  The 
vehicles already have plates on the 
back which are not removable and 
mark them as a taxi so a built in top 
light should not make them more 
vulnerable to theft. 
 
 

 
 
If drivers are using their 
driver badges and internal 
plates correctly as they 
should do this should not be 
a problem.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Vehicles currently have a 
permanently fixed plate at the 
back of the vehicle identifying 
them as a taxi at all times.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



as a taxi.  What the Council is suggesting would 
make it impossible to disguise a taxi and provide 
a perfect target on the side of the vehicle.  Is the 
council prepared to foot the bill for damages to 
vehicles caused by the introduction of these 
standardisations?  We believe you are inviting 
trouble by colour standardisation and the 
inclusion of a logo. 

 
Finally on the subject of livery, the Council 
should note that the National Private Hire 
Association has challenged the standardisation 
of the colour of private hire vehicles many times 
and has won every single case, which we have, 
in the past, given evidence of.  The Association 
has also won all the cases where they have 
challenged the standardisation Hackney 
Carriage colour. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
As above please see case 
law on Simmons v Guildford 
(Crown Court) in 2016. 

3. Fixed Roof Light 
 
Again, we bring your attention to the fact that 
taxis are privately owned vehicles and for the 
Council to insist on permanent roof lights, is 
defacement and would reduce the value of the 
car when re-sold.  Under the Human Rights Act, 
drivers have a right to privacy so not being able 
to remove the roof light would contravene this 
act.  Also, we come back to the fact that a fixed 
roof light would call undue attention to the 
vehicle when left unattended, and create a 
target for thieves.  
 

  
 
Please see comments above.  

 
 
 

4. Internal Licence Plate    

P
age 52



 
This is unnecessary as drivers already have a 
badge which must be on view to the customer at 
all times.  Perhaps, reminding drivers of this 
instead of the added expense of installing a 
plate would suffice.  Installation of an internal 
plate is again defacement, would reduce the 
value of the vehicle, contravene the Human 
Rights Act and create a target for thieves 
 

 

 
Current rear plate and top light is 
sufficient along with driver badge 
on display. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I do not want my vehicle 
damaged in anyway by an 
internal plate. 
 
 

 
Members of the public do still 
struggle to identify a vehicle by the 
plate number and sometimes the 
plate colour.  Stevenage vehicles 
use the same plate layout, size and 
colours as WHBC.  It is not always 
clear straight away that the vehicle is 
WHBC one.  From a public health 
and safety point of view an internal 
plate would be required. The first 
internal plates and logos will 
provided by the Council free of 
charge.  
 
 
 
Internal plates should not cause any 
major damage to vehicles, the same 
way rear plates are easily and 
securely attached.  This was 
discussed. 

 
As members of the public still 
have issues identifying 
vehicles especially from the 
outside when they do not 
always get a good view of the 
back plate.  Drivers’ badges 
should be on display and 
shown if requested but this is 
not always the case.  The 
internal plate would be easily 
viewed especially by a 
passenger who may not feel 
confident on confronting 
issues directly with a driver. 
 
The internal plates will not 
cause any damage to the 
vehicle not deface in anyway.  
These are plastic cased 
paper plates that can stick to 
a windscreen or vehicle and 
should not cause any 
defacement as suggested. 

General Points 
 
In summary, the Council cannot standardise the 
colour of vehicles, cannot insist on installing 
logos, or deface the vehicle in any way, ie, fixed 
roof lights and internal fixed plates.  In addition, 
it is not in the public interest to reduce the 
scope of the fleet by making all vehicles wheel-
chair accessible. 
 
In light of the current economic climate and the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 
In relation to financial 
implications to drivers it is 
reasonable to understand 
that drivers will have had 
access to the 80% income 
offered by the Government 
and that this would have little 
or no major impact on a 
driver’s finance as it was 
before the pandemic. 

P
age 53



vulnerability of drivers’ livelihood, do the Council 
really want to force more drivers out of business 
resulting in a total decimation of the service? 

 
 

 
The recent pandemic was 
discussed by the sub group 
on 16 June 2020 and any 
possible implications were 
highlighted.  The main 
implication being a financial 
one.  It was agreed that the 
Full Council meeting was due 
to go ahead in January 2020 
and that it should proceed to 
a decision but discuss the 
implications of the Covid-19 
pandemic at the meeting on 
20 July 2020. 
 

 

PART B – CONCERNS COMMUNICATED TO THE RT HON GRANT SHAPPS MP BY A CONSTITUENT WHO IS A TAXI DRIVER 

Concern raised Officer Response 
The financial implications of the changes on taxi drivers, especially 
given their financial struggles in light of the ongoing pandemic.   
 
The Council’s understanding of the financial impact the changes to 
the Hackney Carriage Terms and Conditions will have on taxi drivers 
and how the already financially precarious position of many taxi 
drivers due to the current pandemic has been taken into account for 
any potential impact. 

Potential financial implications were considered throughout the 
consultation. The Sub Group took account of these but was not of the 
view that the changes would incur significant additional financial 
costs.   
 
An implementation date of 1st October 2020 is included as a 
recommendation within this Addendum report.  In the event that 
Council approves the adoption of the revised Standard Conditions, 
Council will, in deciding on the implementation date, consider any 
financial impact which the change to the Standard Conditions may 
have on hackney carriage drivers in light of the ongoing covid-19 
pandemic.  

 

P
age 54



Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

The Campus 
Welwyn Garden City 

Herts 7th July 2020 
 

 

 
Dear Sirs 

 
As a representative of the Welwyn and Hatfield Rank Association and with reference to the current 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council's proposed policies regarding Hackney Carriages, I wish to make 
the following points: 

 

1. All vehicles to be WCAVs 
 

We appreciate that there is a need for more WCAVs within the borough but believe it is neither 
necessary nor advantageous to anyone to insist that all vehicles accommodate wheelchairs.  Many 

wheelchair-bound customers prefer to transfer into the more secure seat of the taxi and find it both 

uncomfortable and frightening travelling strapped into their chair, especially when facing backwards. 
 

The disability spectrum is vast and not all disabled customers are in wheelchairs, this is just a small 
proportion.  By limiting the scope of the vehicles provided within the fleet, you potentially create 

problems for customers with other disabilities.  Many older people and those suffering from conditions 
such as achondroplasia, find it hard to get into vehicles which are higher up. 

 

Also, by limiting the variety of vehicles available, you alienate other customers who require 
alternatives such as an executive car, a saloon, an estate or a 6, 7 or 8-seater. 

 
We disagree with your answer to the various questions regarding the cost of WCAVs.  We have not 

been able to find any vehicles which comply with all of the Council’s proposed criteria for under £13k 

plus VAT so would like to see your sources. 
 

Some driver’s vehicles are near the 8 year age limit or have to replace their vehicles owing to 
mechanical problems or accidental damage.  It is wholly unreasonable for the council to expect these 

drivers to find the thousands of pounds extra immediately or in the next few weeks or months.   

. 
We also disagree that the proposed new vehicles are the same length as a non-WCAV.  Again we 

would like to see your research.  Many of the WCAVs are rear-loaded which would mean that 
additional space behind each taxi on the rank would be needed. 

 
We would also like to have sight of the Hackney Carriage Office’s survey regarding the requirement 

for WCAVs.  We acknowledge that it’s possible that 98% of the public would think that WCAVs are a 

good idea and should be provided, but not that that the whole fleet should be wheelchair accessible.  
We have undertaken our own survey, which is available, and not one person said that they believed 

that all taxis should be WCAVs. 
 

If the Council continue on this route, many Hackney carriage and private hire/chauffeur cars will 

choose to be licensed by another district.  The loss of revenue to the council already exceeds 
£10,000.00 and there will be more to follow.  The Council will end up without a taxi service at all. 

 
If the Council feels there are not enough WCAVs within the borough, and the need is not fulfilled by 

the Private Sector, then the Council should invest in vehicles and drivers themselves.  It is the 
Council’s obligation to provide this service, not the drivers.  In addition, you could insist that all new 

drivers coming into the trade provide a wheelchair-accessible vehicle, thereby, in time, replacing the 

whole fleet. 
 

The current fleet already conform to the Vehicle Certification Agency’s description of an ECWVTA M1 
vehicle, in that they are designed and constructed for the carriage of passengers and comprising no 

more than eight seats in addition to the driver’s seat. 

Page 55



 

2. Livery 
 

We are very disappointed to see this item proposed again.  You will recall that the suggestion of a 
uniform colour and WHBC crest were raised back in 2006 and 2007.  Our solicitors proved at the time 

that both these issues were illegal.  The council dropped the idea of the uniform colour but continued 

with the insistence of drivers displaying the council logo on their vehicles.  The case went to court 
and the Council lost on appeal, costing thousands of pounds.  The outcome will be the same should 

the Council wish to continue along this route. 
 

One of the reasons given for changing the colour of the vehicles to a uniform silver colour, is that 
customers would more easily recognise them as taxis.  At the moment, taxis are easily recognised by 

the roof light, for hire sign and the plate on the rear of the vehicle.  In thirty-five years of driving a 

taxi, I have never had, nor heard of, any problems with anyone not recognising a vehicle as a taxi.  
Silver is not a standard universally kept throughout the county, so why, therefore, do you believe that 

this would make the vehicle more like a taxi?  There are many effective and more appropriate ways 
which could be implemented to more easily identify a taxi.  Changing the car to silver, or any colour, 

is not one of them. 

 
The purpose of the Council is to provide a service for the residents of the district, not to shut down 

companies and, thereby, reduce the service.  The actions of the Council are directly causing the 
folding of taxi companies and it would seem these companies are being specifically targeted. 

 
There are many government Acts that state that once you put a logo on a taxi you cannot put it on 

any other vehicle.  Therefore, the Welwyn Hatfield logo could not be used, unless you remove it from 

all other vehicles.  It is not permissible to make a hackney carriage look like any vehicle. 
 

Privately owned hackney carriage vehicles are not just used for work.  Drivers do not want to get 
flagged down when they are not working, for instance, when they are on holiday.  The Human Rights 

Act states that people have a right to privacy. 

 
As a side note, hackney carriages are permitted to display advertising.  Are the council willing to 

compensate drivers for loss of advertising space should the proposed logos be implemented? 
 

Under the Public Passenger Vehicle Act of 1981, a privately owned taxi is not a public service vehicle 

but is a private business owned by the driver.  It is not owned by the council.  With the current 
proposed scheme there would be a rolling change-over to the new silver livery which might take up 

to eight years to implement, by which time there might be a new council with different ideas. 
 

Standardised livery doesn’t work.  St Albans has had a standardised livery for approximately 20 years 
now and even still, non-liveried taxis are being flagged down.  Customers from outside the district are 

not aware that there is a standard livery for the area and flag down any taxi with a light on.  

Customers do not care what colour taxi they get into.  The Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee stated that a standard livery would improve business of drivers, make local taxis more 

easily identifiable for local people who would also feel safer.  What evidence do you have of these 
statements?  Why would a customer feel safer in a silver car and not a black one?  Why do you think 

that a change of colour would improve business and why do you believe that local people need to be 

able to identify taxis more easily? 
 

Page 56



As with all professions, there are rogue elements.  If all cars were the same, it would greatly 

complicate identifying disreputable drivers.  It would make it much harder, perhaps even impossible, 
for a lost purse or phone to be located, or more seriously, a dishonest or violent driver to be 

identified.  It is of utmost importance to the honest members of the Association to identify these 
rogue drivers and have their licences revoked.  If all cars looked the same, it would greatly 

complicate the identification of these disreputable drivers.  The only defining description of the 

perpetrators of crime would be the sex of the driver and their skin colour, all other details would be 
the same.  We need to make the detection of these drivers easier not harder. 

 
It is not only the safety of passengers that is reduced by the use of a standardised colour and logo 

but the safety of the drivers and their vehicles.  As I'm sure you are aware, several taxis have been 
vandalised and broken into for cash etc, in Welwyn Garden City and surrounding areas.  Many drivers 

feel it necessary to switch off their 'For Hire' lights and remove their roof lights when parked, so 

potential assailants won't recognise the vehicle as a taxi.  What the Council is suggesting would make 
it impossible to disguise a taxi and provide a perfect target on the side of the vehicle.  Is the council 

prepared to foot the bill for damages to vehicles caused by the introduction of these 
standardisations?  We believe you are inviting trouble by colour standardisation and the inclusion of a 

logo. 

 
Finally on the subject of livery, the Council should note that the National Private Hire Association has 

challenged the standardisation of the colour of private hire vehicles many times and has won every 
single case, which we have, in the past, given evidence of.  The Association has also won all the 

cases where they have challenged the standardisation Hackney Carriage colour. 
 

3. Fixed Roof Light 

 
Again, we bring your attention to the fact that taxis are privately owned vehicles and for the Council 

to insist on permanent roof lights, is defacement and would reduce the value of the car when re-sold.  
Under the Human Rights Act, drivers have a right to privacy so not being able to remove the roof 

light would contravene this act.  Also, we come back to the fact that a fixed roof light would call 

undue attention to the vehicle when left unattended, and create a target for thieves.  
 

4. Internal Licence Plate 
 

This is unnecessary as drivers already have a badge which must be on view to the customer at all 

times.  Perhaps, reminding drivers of this instead of the added expense of installing a plate would 
suffice.  Installation of an internal plate is again defacement, would reduce the value of the vehicle, 

contravene the Human Rights Act and create a target for thieves. 
 

In summary, the Council cannot standardise the colour of vehicles, cannot insist on installing logos, or 
deface the vehicle in any way, ie, fixed roof lights and internal fixed plates.  In addition, it is not in 

the public interest to reduce the scope of the fleet by making all vehicles wheel-chair accessible. 

 
In light of the current economic climate and the vulnerability of drivers’ livelihood, do the Council 

really want to force more drivers out of business resulting in a total decimation of the service? 
 

I look forward to receiving your comments and hope that common sense will prevail. 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
 

 
Richard Bunday 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Item No: 10 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 20 JULY 2020 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Malcolm Cowan and 

will be seconded by Councillor Paul Zukowskyj:- 
 

“Despite the government’s reported plan to allow conversion of shops to 
residential without the need for planning permission, this council still wishes to 
retain town centre and local shopping parades looking as much like retailing 
opportunities as possible, whilst allowing changes that improve the locations. It 
therefore looks to establishing Article 4 directions in these areas if there is 
material risk or evidence of these areas being significantly adversely impacted, 
so that this council can retain control over usages rather than having them 
dictated by the market.” 
 
 

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8 WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC
	9a Overview and Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chairman Appointment
	9b Review of the Standard Conditions for the Licensing of Hackney Carriage Vehicles
	9b - WAV EOSC Report Jan 2020 (003)
	9b - Hackney Carriage Terms and Conditions March 2020
	9b - WAV EQUALITY ASSESSMENT FORM

	9c ADDENDUM
	Council_20th July 2020_Agenda Item 9b_Appendix to Addendum Report
	200708 Letter to WHBC Re WCAV & Livery edit 2

	10 NOTICES OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16

